

Crowdfunding for Climate Tech Startups

A Global Analysis and the Opportunity Ahead



Report / July 2024

Authors and Acknowledgments

Authors

Pilar Carvajo Lucena Weiting Li Emma Loewen Cheryl Webster

Authors listed alphabetically. All authors from RMI unless otherwise noted.

Contacts

Emma Loewen, eloewen@third-derivative.org Pilar Carvajo Lucena, pcarvajolucena@third-derivative.org

Copyrights and Citation

Emma Loewen, Weiting Li, Cheryl Webster, and Pilar Carvajo Lucena, *Crowdfunding for Climate Tech Startups: A Global Analysis and the Opportunity Ahead*, RMI, 2024, https://rmi.org/insight/crowdfundingfor-climate-tech-startups/.

RMI values collaboration and aims to accelerate the energy transition through sharing knowledge and insights. We therefore allow interested parties to reference, share, and cite our work through the Creative Commons CC BY-SA 4.0 license. https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/.

All images used are from iStock.com unless otherwise noted.

Acknowledgment

Carbon Equity: Liza Rubinstein Malamud Climate Seeders Club: Nalin Agarwal and Shristi Singhania DexMat: Bryan Guido Hassin FrontFundr: Luca Manglaviti Invesdor: Christopher Grätz Joule Case: Jesse Baker National Coalition for Community Capital: Katharine Gilman okom wrks labs: Joshua English Raise Green: Thomas Guest Republic: Abhi Shah Seedrs: Emily Fitch-Deeley Wefunder: Kennedy House and Alexander Czako

We acknowledge generous support from the ClimateWorks Foundation to fund this brief.



About RMI

RMI is an independent nonprofit, founded in 1982 as Rocky Mountain Institute, that transforms global energy systems through market-driven solutions to align with a 1.5°C future and secure a clean, prosperous, zero-carbon future for all. We work in the world's most critical geographies and engage businesses, policymakers, communities, and NGOs to identify and scale energy system interventions that will cut greenhouse gas emissions at least 50 percent by 2030. RMI has offices in Basalt and Boulder, Colorado; New York City; Oakland, California; Washington, D.C.; Abuja, Nigeria; and Beijing.



About Third Derivative

Third Derivative, RMI's global climate tech accelerator, is accelerating the rate of climate innovation. Third Derivative's inclusive ecosystem rapidly finds, funds, and scales climate tech globally. By uniting and aligning investors, corporations, and experts with the world's most promising climate tech startups, Third Derivative bridges finance and resource gaps to increase the speed to market. The flexible and highly curated remote accelerator program enables startups to focus on their unique needs and opportunities. Together, we are moving markets to achieve an equitable climate future. Learn more at www.third-derivative.org



Contents

Introduction
Crowdfunding Takes Off
Exploring Trends in Successful Crowdfunding Deals
Early-Stage Fundraising Rounds Are Most Suitable for Crowdfunding Fundraises 14
A Variety of Business Models Can Take Advantage of Crowdfunding
Crowdfunding Fundraises Closely Align with Broader Climate Tech Investment Trends 16
Physical Climate Tech Products See the Majority of Crowdfunding Dollars
Challenges to Effective Crowdfunding
Distributed Crowdfunding Organizations
Translating the Technical to the Approachable 20
Capacity Constraints and Putting in the Work 21
Nascent Nature of Crowdfunding 21
Balancing Transparency and IP Protection
Conclusion
Technical Appendix
Endnotes



Introduction



The push to net zero is accelerating toward a 2050 deadline, but considering the enormity of the task ahead, this is an all-hands-on-deck moment. The energy transition is going to mean scaling technology solutions that are already familiar, such as wind and solar, but will also mean relying on technologies that are still nascent and yet to reach industrial scale. As the Silicon Valley boom years illustrated, technologies can scale and reach consumers rapidly off the back of a flexible and agile startup model. In the climate technology (climate tech) space, that same logic rings true, with now-common solutions from innovative heat pump technologies to electric vehicles all taking shape initially as startups.¹

As the world moves to clean energy sources and increased electrification, investment in the global energy sector represents the largest wealth creation opportunity in a century, with new climate tech winners set to benefit enormously from success in a booming market². But unlike in previous startup waves, new trends in fundraising mean that it is not just institutional investors and founders that will reap the financial rewards: The growth of crowdfunding to support early-stage startups also allows retail investors (both accredited and nonaccredited) to gain entry into what was previously a closed shop, ran by the world's leading venture capital firms.

This new form of outside capital comes at just the right time. It is estimated that the energy transition will require US\$44 trillion of cumulative investments from 2023 until 2030 to keep us on the 1.5°C-degree pathway, with 80% going toward investments enabling transition technologies.³ But current projections indicate that even as governments and global asset managers allocate trillions to climate investment, they will fail to meet the massive amount of capital necessary to support the transition.

Trends in venture capital behavior also merit analysis. Venture capitalists have historically concentrated more on asset-light, highly scalable technologies due to factors such as lower capital requirements, risk perceptions, and comfort levels, as well as the pursuit of higher margins and rapid growth. However, considering the nuts-and-bolts nature of the energy transition, there is a pressing need to include a focus on climate hardware technology (hardtech) investments — especially ones that have no less potential to produce high margins and rapid growth as compared to their asset-light counterparts.⁴ Recent analysis indicates that there is a private funding gap of US\$2 trillion dollars in what's needed to spur the next generation of climate tech to meet the growing adaptational needs in the face of the climate crisis.⁵ As a result, alternative forms of fundraising — such as crowdfunding — merit consideration to meet this financial gap.

Retail investors offer an important opportunity to unlock additional capital needed to meet this financial challenge. It is estimated that the retail impact investor market is close to US\$715 billion and all retail investors globally represent US\$140–US\$150 trillion.⁶ This capital can go a very long way in closing the climate funding gap.

In this report, we outline the trends around crowdfunding for early-stage startups globally and the crowdfunding landscape for climate tech startups, offering a roadmap for effective climate action through crowdfunding support of innovative solutions. Our findings are based on a review of the crowdfunding deals and service provider landscape for climate tech startups to date, as well as interviews with startup founders and crowdfunding platform providers.

Defining Crowdfunding for Our Analysis

Crowdfunding is defined as a mechanism by which individual retail investors (accredited and nonaccredited) pool capital to provide funding or invest in a company or project. There are generally four models of crowdfunding: donation-based, product-based, debt-based, and equity-based. For the purposes of our analysis, we examine product-, debt-, and equity-based crowdfunding across the following typologies:

- Individuals directly investing in startups or projects they have personally selected. This type of crowdfunding typically is facilitated through online platforms showcasing various investment opportunities among startups, and can include equity, debt, or product models. Examples include Wefunder and climate-focused platforms like Raise Green.
- Individuals investing in funds that are disbursed by a (typically online) intermediary. The intermediary entity establishes the investment vehicle and pools retail investors' capital. This entity also typically performs due diligence and selects startups for investment, and can include equity or debt investment opportunities. Carbon Equity is an example of this kind of platform.

Please see *Exploring Trends in Successful Crowdfunding Deals* for further details about benefits and considerations when leveraging these various financial instruments for climate tech fundraising efforts.

Crowdfunding Takes Off

Although venture capital (VC) funding has been the predominant form of fundraising for early-stage startups, crowdfunding has been growing in popularity, with the two largest markets being the United States and the United Kingdom as evidenced in Exhibit 1.⁷

Exhibit 1

Global distribution of crowdfunding deals (2010-23)



In 2018, equity crowdfunding campaigns in the United States raised over US\$74 million. In 2019, wellknown VC investors began leading equity crowdfunding rounds for startups, raising over US\$100 million. In 2020, that number more than doubled to over US\$211 million.⁸ In 2023, the global crowdfunding market was estimated at over US\$1.4 billion and it is expected to double by 2030.⁹ These trends are also echoed raised by climate tech startup crowdfunding. Exhibit 2 shows the rapid rise in crowdfunding deals from global startup climate tech crowdfunding deals beginning in 2010, reaching a peak of 4.3% of all global climate startup deals in 2016, and holding steady at around 3%–4% of all climate deals through 2022, with a dip to 1.8% in 2023, reflecting the wider investment slowdown in 2023.



Exhibit 2 Number of global startup climate tech deals (2010-23)



Looking at the breakdown of deals (see Exhibit 3), we can see that equity crowdfunding makes up the majority of crowdfunding deals, seeing the strongest increase over the period, followed by product and debt. From 2013 to 2023, the number of global climate tech equity crowdfunding deals surged by nearly 2,000%, while debt and product crowdfunding grew by 1,300% and 100%, respectively.

Exhibit 3 Breakdown of global startup climate tech crowdfunding deals by crowdfunding type (2010-23)



These results are unsurprising and align with broader investment trends within the climate tech space. Three main factors can begin to explain this growth. First, climate crowdfunding growth reflects the general trends in climate tech more broadly, Exhibit 2 demonstrates the growth in crowdfunding deals following a similar, if not slightly more moderate, trajectory as all climate tech deals. This is due to substantial growth in the climate tech sector, with the ecosystem increasing its combined value 45x over the last decade, from US\$55.4 billion to US\$2.5 trillion.¹⁰

The second factor is the development of increasing crowdfunding regulations, creating clearer frameworks and improving the transparency and protection of both investors and issuers. Reviews of legislation across various countries found that several regulators (including in Australia, New Zealand, and the United States) have taken liberal approaches (vs. protectionist) specifically related to equity crowdfunding, enabling more growth in these markets.¹¹ For example, in the United States, since Regulation Crowdfunding (Reg CF) was introduced in 2016, it has supported over 6,500 startups and raised nearly US\$2.4 billion in capital through 8,400 investment rounds for early-stage companies.¹² The final factor is the proliferation of the internet, and social media specifically, ultimately increasing the reach of crowdfunding campaigns. One study even found a correlation with an increase in number of tweets and successful campaign outcomes.¹³

These trends are replicated when looking at fundraising totals by global climate tech crowdfunding deals. Total crowdfunding fundraising amounts grew by a median of 37% per year over the last decade. From 2013 to 2023, the total raised by global climate tech equity crowdfunding deals surged by 3,200%, with debt crowdfunding increasing by 3,800%, while product crowdfunding saw a slight decrease of 13%.

The trend of significant growth within equity fundraising is consistent with broader trends in climate tech startups funding. Exhibit 4 outlines the share of global funding for climate tech startups and the dominance of dilutive funding up to Q4 2022. Evaluation of all climate tech fundraises show that from 2019 to 2022, dilutive funding (cash in exchange for ownership in the company) made up the majority of funding secured by climate tech startups globally. Post-2022, debt financing made up an increasing portion of funding for climate startups, and in Q1 2024, over 60% of the funding was non-dilutive (cash with interest repayment terms).¹⁴ Exhibit 3 shows a marginal increase in aggregate debt crowdfunding rounds over the last two years, similar to the trend observed in global climate tech non-dilutive funding. We can hypothesize this is connected to the global slowdown in equity investments and a shift in remaining equity investments from earlier to mid- or later-stage climate startups.¹⁵



Exhibit 4 Share of global funding for climate startups (2019-24)

Source: Net Zero Insights, RMI Analysis



When examining the contribution of crowdfunding to global climate tech startup fundraising (see Exhibit 5), observe that in terms of deal number, crowdfunding peaked at around 4% of global climate tech deals in 2016 and has since declined through 2023. Similarly, in terms of dollars raised, crowdfunding trends closely mirror the number of deals, ranging from 0.2% to 0.7%.

Exhibit 5

Percent of total global climate tech startup deals and funding raised from crowdfunding (2010-23)



Source: Net Zero Insights, RMI Analysis



Alongside deals and fundraised amounts, the provision of crowdfunding platforms and service offerings has also steadily increased over the years in correlation with the rise in internet and social media usage. Through desk research, we identified 165 crowdfunding platforms that support climate-focused tech startups across 34 countries. These platforms were founded as early as 2004; the growth of new platforms peaked in 2014, with 25 founded that year, and an average of 10 platforms were founded per year from 2015 to 2023. When looking at the geographic distribution in Exhibit 6, we can see that the countries with the largest number of crowdfunding platforms are concentrated in Europe (France, Germany, and Italy), the United Kingdom, and the United States.

Exhibit 6 Number of global climate tech supportive crowdfunding platforms, by country HQ



When examining the financial instruments offered by these platforms, we found that they are correlated with the overall deal and fundraising trends, with the majority of platforms supporting equity crowdfunding fundraises (123 platforms), followed by debt (55 platforms) and then product (5 platforms).ⁱ

i



In some instances, a platform supported more than one crowdfunding financial instrument.



The Hardtech Challenge

Hardtech startups face many unique barriers compared with traditional software technology startups, most notably with fundraising efforts. One of the biggest challenges is the high up-front capital requirements for many climate hardtech solutions to reach scale. According to recent analysis, there is a private funding gap of US\$2 trillion dollars in what is needed for the next generation of climate tech to address the climate crisis.¹⁶ Venture capitalists have historically focused more on asset-light, highly scalable technologies (such as software) due to a range of factors including lower capital requirements, lower risk, higher margins, and rapid growth potential; however, there is a growing (and pressing) need to consider hardtech investments to both meet climate goals and make the most of this coming investment opportunity.¹⁷ Crowdfunding presents an opportunity for a broader group of investors, with potentially different incentives and risk-appetite profiles and a higher tolerance for a longer time horizon to return.

Exploring Trends in Successful Crowdfunding Deals

Exhibit 7

Features identified across successful climate tech startups crowdfunding deals

Equity	Debt	Product
Early Stage	Early Stage	Early Stage
Business-to-Business	Business-to-BusinessBusiness-to-Consumer	Business-to-Consumer
• Physical or Digital product	• Physical or Digital product	Physical product
TransportCircular economyEnergy	TransportFood and agricultureEnergy	Circular economyFood and agricultureEnergy
• Allows them to raise capital without giving up a large share of control or ownership of the company, unlike traditional venture capital or private equity investments	 Non-dilutive funding source/ownership retention Process can be faster than securing a loan through traditional banks, Restrictions can be less strict compared to traditional lenders Clear repayment schedule 	 Avoids debt and interest of loans, non-dilutive funding source market validation Opportunity to develop sales for the product you are offering Marketing opportunity to raise awareness about your product as well as developing a community around your product
 Dilutive funding source Regulation and reporting complexity/requirements can increase costs and timelines for crowdfunding raises 	 Repayment requirements with interest, regardless of company performance Potential impacts to credit score if loan cannot be repaid, potentially impacting future financing opportunity Potential requirements for collateral or personal guarantee/risk of losing these assats 	 Delivery risks, delays in providing the product to customers can result in reputation damage or needing to return funds Providing details of product could put company at risk of sharing IP/copycats
	Equity Early Stage Business-to-Business Physical or Digital product Transport Circular economy Energy Allows them to raise capital without giving up a large share of control or ownership of the company, unlike traditional venture capital or private equity investments Dilutive funding source Regulation and reporting complexity/requirements can increase costs and timelines for crowdfunding raises 	EquityDebt• Early Stage• Early Stage• Business-to-Business• Business-to-Business • Business-to-Consumer• Physical or Digital product• Physical or Digital product• Transport • Circular economy • Energy• Transport • Food and agriculture • Energy• Allows them to raise capital without giving up a large share of control or ownership of the company, unlike traditional venture capital or private equity investments• Non-dilutive funding source/ownership retention • Process can be faster than securing a loan through traditional banks, • Restrictions can be less strict compared to traditional lenders • Clear repayment schedule• Dilutive funding source • Regulation and reporting complexity/requirements can increase costs and timelines for crowdfunding raises• Repayment requirements with interest, regardless of company performance • Potential impacts to credit score if loan cannot be repaid, potentially impacting future financing opportunity • Potential requirements for collateral or personal guarantee/risk of losing

Source: Stripe, "Types of Crowdfunding for Startups: Four Types to Know," Stripe, August 17, 2023; Olga Okhrimenko, "7 Key Benefits of Crowdfunding for Investors: What Exactly Makes It Cool?," JustCoded, November 13, 2018.



Analyses on crowdfunding equity, debt, and product deals for climate tech startups offer some interesting opportunities for trend analysis. Above we analyzed some of the emerging trends around predominant startup characteristics we see across the various crowdfunding typologies, in addition to some hypotheses for these trends.

Early-Stage Fundraising Rounds Are Most Suitable for Crowdfunding Fundraises

Based on our analysis of previous climate tech startup crowdfunding deals and the opportunity ahead, supporting early-stage startups can be the best opportunity to leverage crowdfunding platforms in accelerating the energy transition.

Regulations and historical trends point to why early-stage fundraising rounds are most appropriate for crowdfunding. The average crowdfunding raise is US\$1.08 million and the average equity crowdfunding raise is US\$1.24 million — not a large amount for later-stage startups, but a perfectly acceptable sum for early-stage startups, who would see similar amounts in typical pre-seed, seed, and smaller series-A fundraising rounds.¹⁸ Limits on the scale of crowdfunding allowed by law also make early-stage startups attractive because later-stage startups would likely breach those regulatory barriers. For example, in Europe and the United States, companies are limited to raising 5 million dollars or euros per year through crowdfunding; in the United Kingdom, companies can fundraise up to EUR 13 million (US\$13.8 million) through platforms that are licensed in both the UK and the EU; in Singapore, it is SGD 5 million (US\$3.7 million).¹⁹

Finally, we heard from platforms and startups that leveraging crowdfunding for early-stage fundraises can help startups attract follow-on funding from VCs and angel investors by proving product-market fit. For example, in product crowdfunding raises, startups are able to demonstrate a market demand for their existing product through successful crowdfunding campaigns. In equity and debt crowdfunding, feedback and involvement from their large investor base can support startups in user research and other activities to ascertain product-market fit. Crowdfunding platforms can offer a low barrier to entry opportunity for early-stage climate startups (especially business-to-consumer [B2C] startups, which we get to more in the next section) to make the pivots necessary to better tailor their products. This is especially true when considering other approaches to evaluating market fit such as surveys, marketing, and needs assessments that can be more costly and time intensive.²⁰ As startups mature, they consolidate their audience and offerings, which may diminish the additional benefits that crowdfunding opportunities once provided, especially as their capital needs grow.

A Variety of Business Models Can Take Advantage of Crowdfunding

While product crowdfunding has typically thrived in B2C companies — where investors receive the product in exchange for their financial contribution — equity and loan crowdfunding campaigns have shown mixed success across both B2B and B2C sectors, albeit slightly favoring B2B for equity crowdfunding raises.²¹

A survey-based research study determined that B2B was preferable to investors for equity crowdfunding investments.²² Similarly, Scott Simpkin, UK Team Lead of the Seedrs crowdfunding platform, observed a similar trend during an online webinar in 2020, indicating that B2B outperformed B2C on the platform when it came to equity crowdfunding raises.²³

Exhibit 8 Business model associated with global climate startup crowdfunding deals (2010-23)



Similarly to the trend we see when we look at global crowdfunding raises, Exhibit 8 shows that there is no significant funding preference shown between B2B and B2C companies that completed successful crowdfunding campaigns. B2B organizations are engaged in 61% of equity crowdfunding deals, while B2C organizations account for 37%. In debt crowdfunding, B2B comprises 67% of deals, with B2C at 31%. Product crowdfunding deals are predominantly led by B2C organizations, constituting 58%, while B2B organizations account for the remaining 42%.

Exhibit 9

Total amount raised by global clean tech crowdfunding deals, by business type, by year in USD (2010-23)



We see similar trends when looking at the total amounts fundraised by global climate tech crowdfunding deals outlined in Exhibit 9: both B2B and B2C follow a similar trajectory, with B2B raising slightly larger totals. However, B2C companies reported larger average deal sizes: equity, debt, and product deals averaged US\$1.5 million, US\$1.6 million, and US\$1 million, respectively, compared to US\$1.2 million, US\$1.1 million, and US\$1 million for B2B companies.

Crowdfunding Fundraises Closely Align with Broader Climate Tech Investment Trends

Crowdfunding deals reflect the wider trends in climate investing, with four sectors — the circular economy, energy, food and agriculture, and transport — receiving the bulk of investment across equity, debt, and product fundraises, as detailed in Exhibit 10.ⁱⁱ

Exhibit 10

Sectors associated with global climate startup crowdfunding deals (2010-23)



Exhibit 10 shows the distribution of different types of crowdfunding by sector. A potential explanation for product crowdfunding's largest allocation in the circular economy sector, followed by energy and food and agriculture, is the product-consumer nature of the technologies available in these markets: innovative product solutions to reduce waste, save energy, and deliver more local, homegrown food solutions are very tangible, consumer-facing opportunities. In many instances, retail investors will invest in product crowdfunding raises to be the first customer and benefit from the product and its development.²⁴

ii



An organization can fall into multiple categories, potentially being counted more than once.

This reasoning can also explain the higher allocation in these sectors across all crowdfunding typologies. These are easier areas within the climate space for retail investors to understand because they impact daily lives, versus categories such as emissions data, greenhouse gas capital, industry natural environment, and water, which are seeing fewer deals. These sectors are more technically challenging to understand as concepts and are also less a part of the day-to-day life of retail investors. One of the challenges we heard from startups and platforms for crowdfunding raises specific to climate tech is translating what are often highly technical processes to retail investors. Sectors that are less familiar to the average retail investor have an uphill battle in translating their offering (and the technology behind it) in a way that is clear and understandable to a lay audience.

Exhibit 11

Total amount raised by global clean tech crowdfunding deals by sectors per year in USD (2010-23)



When examining crowdfunding raise totals across sectors over time in Exhibit 11, energy, transport, circular economy, and built environment have consistently held a large portion of investment dollars. In the past three years, sectors like food and agriculture, along with industry, have seen a notable growth in funding prominence. In 2023, the trends were aligned with broader investments in climate tech with total early-stage non-crowdfunding investment in the top four sectors including transport, built environment, food and agriculture, and industry, respectively.

rmi.org 17



Physical Climate Tech Products See the Majority of Crowdfunding Dollars

When examining average deal size in Exhibit 12, the most notable flag is the significant discrepancy in product crowdfunding raise amounts between startups offering digital vs physical solutions. This likely speaks to the perceptions within product crowdfunding of digital products being inherently riskier investments or investors being less likely to receive the completed product, in addition to the lower number of digital crowdfunding raises generally (25 completed raises over a 13-year period).²⁵

Our research found that startups that promised a physical product made up the majority of successful crowdfunding raises, with digital products making up only 31%, 40%, and 23% for equity, debt, and product deals, respectively.^{III} As outlined in Exhibit 13, we can see that this breakdown holds consistent over the years. This is likely due to the nature of climate tech more broadly as a hardtech industry. These percentages are reflective of the hardtech/digital technology breakdown across all early-stage climate tech deals, where digital products make up 30% of all deals.

Despite the larger number of deals associated with equity physical product crowdfunding raises, we can see a nominal difference between digital and physical product fundraises, with digital fundraises being slightly higher on average.



iii An organization can fall into multiple categories, potentially being counted more than once.

Exhibit 12 Average deal size for global clean tech crowdfunding deals, by product type (2020-23)



Exhibit 13

Total amount raised by global clean tech crowdfunding deals, by sector per year in USD (2010-23)



Source: Net Zero Insights, RMI Analysis





Challenges to Effective Crowdfunding

Despite the opportunities equity crowdfunding presents for climate tech startups, we have identified a handful of challenges with the status quo based on research and conversations with startups and crowdfunding organizations.

Distributed Crowdfunding Organizations

In most jurisdictions, crowdfunding is regulated at the national level. As a result, it can be challenging for existing crowdfunding platform companies to scale to other jurisdictions because they are then required to comply with new sets of regulations. Furthermore, government regulation at multiple levels may not permit accredited or nonaccredited investors from other countries to invest. For example, even though crowdfunding is now regulated through the EU, a European-based crowdfunding platform we spoke with indicated challenges to scaling their services across Europe due to national-level regulations and restrictions.

This can pose real challenges for climate startups to leverage crowdfunding from a broader group of investors for their fundraising efforts. First, strict or inconsistent regulations can result in less availability of crowdfunding platforms with which a startup is able to work, in addition to limited competition, which can result in high fees or lower quality of platforms available to startups. For example, in Canada, crowdfunding rules are relatively restrictive and regulated at the provincial or territorial level, resulting in varying requirements for crowdfunding platforms.²⁶ As a result, crowdfunding deals in Canada lag other climate tech fundraising deals. Specifically, Canada makes up 0.8% of climate tech crowdfunding deals versus 4.4% of other climate tech fundraising deals globally during the 2010–23 period.

Second, for smaller geographies, a startup's home country may not have a sufficient investor base, and if platforms are not able to accept international retail investors, it could be challenging for these startups to leverage crowdfunding as a meaningful avenue for fundraising.

Translating the Technical to the Approachable

Unlike other forms of fundraising such as VC investments or loans for institutional investors, the crowdfunding model relies on telling a compelling — and approachable — story. This involves not only highlighting the unique features and benefits of their offering but also effectively communicating their vision, values, and impact potential. In an interview with FrontFundr, it was pointed out that "you can have a great vision but if it isn't communicated in a simple or effective way, then they will be pushed away, specifically retail investors." For those climate startups that may work in a technology that is not yet easily understood or widely available, the ability to tell a compelling story that resonates with a target audience may be limited or at least face an uphill battle compared with other sectors where the value proposition is clearer or easier to understand by a broader audience of potential investors.



Capacity Constraints and Putting in the Work

Setting expectations and educating investors is crucial, particularly when bringing in retail investors who may not be familiar with investment procedures. Startups often bear the burden of educating investors, which can strain resources and divert attention from core business activities. Overcoming this barrier requires effective communication strategies and a commitment to transparency and investor engagement. Startups could also benefit from educational resources that help them prepare for a successful campaign. Wefunder discovered that startups often fail because of not understanding the right level of the work, preparation, during the launch and after the launch. Collaborating with industry associations and leveraging educational resources can help startups navigate these complexities and foster a more informed and supportive investor base.

Nascent Nature of Crowdfunding

Crowdfunding is still a nascent industry, and there are several aspects of this reality that keep potential segments of investors away. The first challenge is in vetting the reliability and claims of crowdfunding campaigns from an investor perspective. Few crowdfunding platforms cater exclusively to climate tech investment, and most platforms do not typically distinguish between impactful initiatives and greenwashing attempts, which can be an important piece of information investors are seeking when evaluating how to make meaningful contributions to the energy transition. Robust impact measurement frameworks can help identify projects with the potential to drive significant environmental change and combat climate change effectively.

A second challenge is that we still do not have proof of concept in terms of case studies of investors benefiting from their investments. US general equity crowdfunding data shows there have been only 77 exits from 6,735 Reg CF and Regulation A+ crowdfunding raises in the United States (1.2%). A reason for this is that many crowdfunding raises are still relatively young (median 2.3 years since their raise) and positive exits typically take 8–12 years from investment.²⁷ As a result, it is hard to point to many success stories because we are still waiting to see the outcome of many of these investments. There are even fewer data points for climate-tech-specific fundraises. Our data did not indicate any exits to date for climate-focused startups globally. For many retail investors, seeing the proof of concept will be required before entering the crowdfunding investment arena.

A third challenge is that there is still a prevalent perception that crowdfunding is for fun "trinkets" and not for making investments in startups. When most people think of crowdfunding, their minds go to product-based raises. Debt and equity crowdfunding raise options are relatively new and under the radar for many. As a result, many potential retail investors are left out because they may not be aware of the opportunities for equity or debt crowdfunding and the options of different structures (as outlined at the beginning of this report).

Balancing Transparency and IP Protection

Traditional loans from financial institutions or VC investments typically involve a level of protection of a startup's private information and intellectual property (IP), which provides investors and loan evaluators with transparent information to be able to make an informed decision. In some instances with crowdfunding, providing this type of transparency can be of great risk to the startup. As a result, sometimes crowdfunding investors cannot have the full picture when making an investment, and this generally adds a level of risk to crowdfunding transactions, threatening their scalability.²⁸ Some countries have developed more stringent regulations around disclosures obligations including prospectus, financial statements, and/or annual reports.²⁹ However, startups can still be put in the challenging position of balancing adding transparency to their campaigns and risk sharing IP, or providing fewer details publicly and limiting the ability for retail investors to evaluate investments to their comfort level, risking potential investors walking away.

Conclusion

Crowdfunding campaigns have a role to play in increasing the reach of and access to the opportunity to invest in the climate transition. These campaigns open new doors for early-stage startups focusing on nascent technologies, and allow for a broader and more diverse group of individuals to privately fund and support innovations they believe in. Crowdfunding platforms are quickly becoming an interesting fundraising tool for startups focused on climate tech to consider as they navigate different sources of capital. Still, this is still an opportunity that needs to be further investigated to become more accessible and better understood.

The most popular crowdfunding campaigns have been concentrated in a select number of geographies that, unsurprisingly, already have the largest share of investments in climate tech. The climate transition must be an equitable transition, where innovative startups in the farthest reaches of the globe have the same opportunities to scale and enact change as companies in traditional capital and innovation hubs. Crowdfunding can also give innovative startups and retail investors the same opportunities to contribute to reaching our global 2050 climate goals, regardless of where they are located.

For crowdfunding to achieve a greater climate impact, sectoral preference would also have to shift and match the current breakdown of emissions, requiring more startups and investors aligning around the opportunity to innovate and invest in the highest-emitting sectors such as buildings, industry, electricity, and agriculture and forestry.

Technical Appendix

Overview

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change estimates that fighting global warming will require US\$3.5 trillion of investment annually by 2050. The energy transition is thus one of the great investment opportunities of our time. Unfortunately, the ability to share in the upside from the energy transition is primarily limited to institutional funders, especially for early-stage technologies and startups that are often supported by venture capital or high-net-worth investors. Unaccredited retail investors have few avenues to participate. This presents a missed opportunity, because the global crowdfunding market was estimated at over US\$1.4 billion in 2023 and is expected to double by 2030. Accessing these investors, however, generally imposes an increased compliance burden under US federal and state securities laws.

Morrison & Foerster LLP and Third Derivative, a program of RMI, have collaborated to prepare a technical appendix that provides an overview of certain key US securities laws, how these laws can make raising funds from unaccredited retail investors difficult, and structures available to broaden participation from this constituency.

Such options include forming registered funds (such as interval funds), conducting securities offerings through nonprofit entities (that may qualify for certain exemptions), and establishing a crowdfunding platform or internet-based funding portal — or partnering with existing crowdfunding platforms for either purpose. For each of the legal structures analyzed to aggregate capital from retail investors, the technical appendix includes an overview; an analysis of the compliance considerations, key terms and conditions, and relevant stakeholders; and an example, as well as considerations for the advantages and disadvantages of pursuing each of the options analyzed.

If interested in exploring further...

Sponsors and other persons interested in reading the technical appendix in detail and exploring the legal issues posed by soliciting capital from unaccredited investors, and the potential solutions discussed above, are invited to reach out to Third Derivative (info@third-derivative.org) and Morrison & Foerster LLP (BenjaminFox@mofo.com, SMaccormac@mofo.com).

Endnotes

- Cadie Thompson, Tim Levin, and Kristen Lee, "Tesla History's Most Important Moments, From Its Founders' Launch to Bringing EVs Mainstream," *Business Insider*, June 22, 2023, https://www. businessinsider.com/tesla-history-founders; and Chris Baraniuk, "Meet the Heat Pump: An Old Technology That's the Future of Home Heating," *Canary Media*, February 28, 2023, https://www. canarymedia.com/articles/heat-pumps/meet-the-heat-pump-an-old-technology-thats-the-futureof-home-heating.
- 2 "Transforming the Energy System and Holding the Line on Rising Global Temperatures," IRENA, September 20, 2019, https://www.irena.org/publications/2019/Sep/Transforming-the-energy-system.
- "Investment Needs of USD 35 Trillion by 2030 for Successful Energy Transition," IRENA, March 28, 2023, https://www.irena.org/News/pressreleases/2023/Mar/Investment-Needs-of-USD-35-trillion-by-2030-for-Successful-Energy-Transition.
- **4** Robert Cote, "Why Investors Should Prioritize Hardware over Software Companies," *Built In*, May 16, 2023, https://builtin.com/finance/vc-investors-prioritize-hardware.
- 5 Dilip Krishna et al., "How Financial Firms Can Help Bridge a \$2 Trillion Climate Tech Funding Gap," News, WSJ, September 12, 2023, https://deloitte.wsj.com/sustainable-business/how-financial-firmscan-help-bridge-a-2-trillion-climate-tech-funding-gap-80d411f5.
- 6 Danielle Rossingh, "Retail Investors Are the 'Frontier' for Impact Investing," Impact Investor, March 8, 2022, https://impact-investor.com/retail-investors-are-the-next-frontier-for-impact-investing; and Shrey Jain et al., "The Rise of Retail Investors in Global Capital Markets," Everest Group, March 29, 2023, https://www.everestgrp.com/business-process-services/the-rise-of-retail-investors-in-global-capital-markets-blog.html.
- 7 "Climate Tech Guide," Dealroom, accessed March 24, 2024, https://dealroom.co/guides/climate-tech.
- 8 Krishan Arora, "The Meteoric Rise Equity Crowdfunding," *Forbes*, December 20, 2021, https://www.forbes.com/sites/forbesagencycouncil/2021/12/20/the-meteoric-rise-of-equity-crowdfunding/.
- 9 "Types of Crowdfunding for Startups: Four Types to Know," Stripe, August 17, 2023, https://stripe.com/ resources/more/four-types-of-crowdfunding-for-startups-and-how-to-choose-one.
- **10** "Climate Tech Guide," Dealroom.co.
- 11 Nathan Rose, "How the World Regulates Equity Crowdfunding," *The Regulatory Review*, June 26, 2019, https://www.theregreview.org/2019/06/26/rose-how-world-regulates-equity-crowdfunding/.
- 12 "Celebrating 8 Years of Empowering Entrepreneurs: The Impact of Regulation Crowdfunding," Crowdfund Capital Advisors, May 17, 2024, https://crowdfundcapitaladvisors.com/celebrating-8years-of-empowering-entrepreneurs-the-impact-of-regulation-crowdfunding/.



- Harmeet Kaur and Jaya Gera, "Effect of Social Media Connectivity on Success of Crowdfunding Campaigns," *Procedia Computer Science*, 122 (2017): 767–774, https://doi.org/10.1016/j. procs.2017.11.435.
- 14 "State of Climate Tech Q1 2024," Net Zero Insights, April 10, 2024, https://netzeroinsights.com/stateof-climate-tech-q1-2024/.
- 15 "Climate Tech Investment Falls 40% amid Economic Uncertainty: PwC 2023 State of Climate Tech," PwC, accessed June 11, 2024, https://www.pwc.com/gx/en/news-room/press-releases/2023/pwc-2023-state-of-climate-tech.html.
- 16 Krishna et al., "How Financial Firms Can Help Bridge a \$2 Trillion Climate Tech Funding Gap."
- 17 Cote, "Why Investors Should Prioritize Hardware over Software Companies."
- **18** Winnie Khoo, "Everything You Need to Know about Pre-Seed Funding," Antler Academy, December 7, 2022, https://www.antler.co/academy/pre-seed-funding.
- 19 Muna M. Alhammad, Rawan AlOthman, and Chekfoung Tan, "Review of Crowdfunding Regulations across Countries: A Systematic Review Study," *Journal of Information Systems Engineering and Management* 6, no. 4 (December 2, 2021): em0145, https://doi.org/10.21601/jisem/11395; and Paul Sawers, "EU Business Crowdfunding Is Now Bound by Bloc-Wide Regulations," *TechCrunch*, November 10, 2023, https://techcrunch.com/2023/11/10/eu-business-crowdfunding-is-now-bound-by-bloc-wide-regulations/.
- 20 Patrick Tully, "The Journey to Product-Market Fit," Pimberly, March 20, 2024, https://pimberly.com/ blog/the-journey-to-product-market-fit/.
- 21 Advantages and Disadvantages of Seeking Crowdfunding," July 16, 2023, https://www.shopify.com/ ca/blog/crowdfunding-advantages-and-disadvantages.
- 22 Tanja Jovanovi and Kai-Ingo Voigt, "Who Invests Why? An Analysis of Investment Decisions in B2B or B2C Equity Crowdfunding Projects," *International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Small Business*, May 2019.
- 23 "Equity Crowdfunding: B2C vs B2B," Finerva, 2020, https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kldsCkL_USI.
- 24 Jovanovi and Voigt, "Who Invests Why?"
- 25 Paul Teich, "Crowdfunding Digital Products Is a Dicey Proposition," *Forbes*, July 25, 2018, https:// www.forbes.com/sites/tiriasresearch/2018/05/31/crowdfunding-digital-products-is-a-diceyproposition/?sh=1c4485b515b6.
- 26 Rose, "How the World Regulates Equity Crowdfunding."

- 27 Brian Belley, "Investment Crowdfunding Exits vs. Failures: A 2018-2024 Data Analysis," KingsCrowd, April 1, 2024, https://kingscrowd.com/investment-crowdfunding-exits-vs-failures-a-2018-2024data-analysis/.
- 28 Mark Anthony Camilleri and Stefano Bresciani, "Crowdfunding Small Businesses and Startups: A Systematic Review, an Appraisal of Theoretical Insights and Future Research Directions," *European Journal of Innovation Management*, October 11, 2022, https://doi.org/10.1108/EJIM-02-2022-0060.
- 29 Alhammad, AlOthman, and Tan, "Review of Crowdfunding Regulations across Countries."



Emma Loewen, Weiting Li, Cheryl Webster, and Pilar Carvajo Lucena, *Crowdfunding for Climate Tech Startups: A Global Analysis and the Opportunity Ahead*, RMI, 2024, https://rmi.org/insight/crowdfundingfor-climate-tech-startups/.

RMI values collaboration and aims to accelerate the energy transition through sharing knowledge and insights. We therefore allow interested parties to reference, share, and cite our work through the Creative Commons CC BY-SA 4.0 license. https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/.



All images used are from iStock.com unless otherwise noted.



RMI Innovation Center 22830 Two Rivers Road Basalt, CO 81621

www.rmi.org

© July 2024 RMI. All rights reserved. Rocky Mountain Institute[®] and RMI[®] are registered trademarks.